
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9:00 a.m. 
 

April 16, 2021 
 

Shreveport Convention Center  
104 Market Street 
Shreveport, LA 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

Committee of the Whole 

Friday, April 16, 2021 

Shreveport Convention Center  
104 Market Street 

Shreveport, LA 71101 
9:00 AM 

AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Invocation ~ Reverend Alejandro Smith, Pastor of Light Hill Baptist Church 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Roll Call 
5. Adoption of the Agenda 
6. Public Comments 
7. Special Presentations: 

A. Above and Beyond Award 
B. Frank Taylor, Jr. Memorial Scholarship 
C. Billie Jones Donation  
D. SU Army ROTC 
E. Greetings from GSU President Rick Gallot 
F. Bayou Classic Signature Mask 
G. Check Presentations: 

1. McDonald’s (SUSLA) 
2. SUSLA Alumni (SUSLA) 
3. Precious Memory Funeral Home (SUSLA) 

8. Action Items: 
A. Approval of Minutes of March 12, 2021 Virtual Meeting of the SU Board of Supervisors 
B. Certification of Spring 2021 Graduates (SUBR, SUNO, SUSLA, and SULC) 
C. Request Approval to Award the Honorary Degree of Doctorate of Humane Letters to J. 

Terrell Brown - SU College of Business (SUBR) 
D. Request Approval for the Conferral of a Posthumous Degree in the Name of William Nabors 

from the Southern University Law Center (SULC) 
E. Request Approval of Ms. Gayle Benson as Commencement Speaker and Awarding of 

Honorary Degree of Doctorate of Humane Letters -SUNO College of Business and Public 
Administration (SUNO) 

F. Request Approval to Establish the Southern University and A&M College Jewel Limar 
Prestage Public Policy, Polling and Research Center (SUBR) 

G. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the Southern University 
Agricultural Research and Extension Center and Black Farmers Hemp Research and Training 
Facility, LLC (SUAREC) 

H. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the Southern University 
Agricultural Family and Consumer Sciences 1890 JAG S.T.A.R.S Scholarship and East 
Baton Rouge Parish School System (SUAREC) 

I. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between LSU Health Shreveport 
School of Medicine MOU with SUBR and SUNO 

J. Request Authorization for the Southern University Law Center (SULC) to negotiate an 
Agreement with ION Tuition and Mentor Works to Provide Alternate Sources to Finance 
Student Educational Aspirations and Pursuits (SULC) 

K. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to develop remote/virtual 
certificate and degree programs for students and professionals in Sub-Saharan Africa by 
the Southern University Law Center (SULC) 



 L .  Request Approval of Tenure and Promotion Recommendations 
(SUBR) 

 

 

 
M.  Request Approval of Tenure Track Recommendation for Katherine A. McFarlane (SULC) 
N. Request Approval to Implement 100% Online Degree Courses, Effective Fall 2021 (SUNO) 

1. B.S. in Criminal Justice 
2. M.A. in Criminal Justice 
3. Bachelors in Interdisciplinary Studies 
4. B.S. in Health Information Management Systems 

O. Request Approval Implement New Programs of Study Specifically Designed to Address the 
Workforce Needs in the Northwest Louisiana Region, Increase Enrollment and Provide More 
Options and Opportunities for Embedded Credentials. (SUSLA) 

5. Associates of Applied Science in Computer Engineering 
6. Certificate of Technical Study: Engineering (Academic Transfer and Dual 

Enrollment) 
7. Certificate of Technical Study: Quality Assurance 
8. Certificate of Technical Study: Energy Technology 
9. Certificate of Technical Study: Electronics Technology Technician 
10. Certificate of Technical Study: Petroleum Technology Operator 
11. Certificate of Applied Science: Digital Forensics 
12. Certificate of Technical Studies: Aviation 
13. Certificate of Technical Studies: Automotive Technology 
14. Certificate of Technical Study: Precision Measurement Instruments 
15. Certificate of Technical Studies: Payroll Accounting 
16. Certificate of Technical Studies: Human Resources Specialist 
17. Certificate of Technical Studies: Law Enforcement Administration 
18. Certificate of Technical Studies: Security Studies 
19. Associate and Applied Science (AAS) Degree in Graphic and Web Design 
20. Certificate of Technical Studies: Graphics Design 
21. Request Approval of Certificate of General Studies 

P. Request Approval to Use Prior Year Funds for Student Services (SUBR) 
Q. Request Authorization to Advance the HBCU Capital Finance Program Application 

(SUBR) 
R. Request Approval of Endowed Professorship Policy (SUSLA) 
S. Request Approval of Revised Policy for Endowed Faculty and Chairs (SUBR) 



 

T. Request Approval of Salary Adjustments for Instructors/Academic Counselors (SULC) 

 
U. Request Approval of Equity Adjustments (SUBR) 
 

1. Cynthia Bryant Dean of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies 
Equity Adjustment 

(SUBR) 

$145,650.00 State 

2. Barbara Carpenter Dean of International Programs 
Equity Adjustment 

(SUBR) 

$127,500.00 State 

3. Karen Crosby Dean of the Honors College- SUBR 
Equity Adjustment 

(SUBR) 

$127,500.00 State 

4. Damien Ejigiri Dean of the Nelson Mandela School of Public Policy and 
Urban Affairs 

Equity Adjustment 
(SUBR) 

$145,650.00 State 

5. Dawn Kight Dean - Library 
Equity Adjustment 

(SUBR) 

$127,500.00 State 

 
 
 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding 
Source 

1. John Brown Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$81,000.00 Federal 

2. Jessica Johnson Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$84,000.00 Federal 

3. Kimberly Lamotte Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$96,000.00 Federal 

6.  Courtney Richardson Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$93,000.00 Federal 

7. Gina Signorelli Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$81,000.00 Federal 

8.  Rahim Smith Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$93,000.00 Federal 

9. Julie Stillman Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$81,000.00 Federal 

    10. Jerne’ Theriot Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$81,000.00 Federal 

    11. Valencia Vessel Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$81,000.00 Federal 

   12.       William Wilson Instructor/Academic Counselor 
Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$81,000.00 Federal 



 

 
 

V. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than $60,000.00 
 

 
W. Request approval of Sabbatical for the Fall 2021 Semester- Dr. David S. Adegboye’ (SUNO) 
X. Resolutions 

 
9. Informational Items 

A. Interim Financial Update 
B. Dual Enrollment Update (by campus) 
C. Update on SULC Legal Education in the Shreveport/Bossier and Northwest Region 

(SULC) 
D. Update on Vaccination Public Awareness Campaign - Don't Wait. Vaccinate! 
E. Legislative Update 
F. System President’s Report ~ Southern University and A&M College Presidential 

Fellows 
G. Campus Reports 

 
10. Other Business 

 
11. Adjournment 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding 
Source 

1.  Marla Dickerson Associate Vice-Chancellor for Innovation and Strategic 
Partnerships and Initiatives 

New Appointment 
(SULC) 

$126,000.00 State 

2. Adriel Hilton Vice-Chancellor of Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management/Associate Professor of Education 

Faculty Appointment / Title Change 
(SUNO) 

No Change -- 

3. Jasmine Hunter Director of Communication 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$78,000.00 State 

4.     Kerii Landry-Thomas Associate Vice Chancellor for 
Equity Inclusion and Title IX 

New Appointment 
(SULC) 

$120,000.00         
Federal 

5.. Robyn Merrick VP for External Affairs and University Relations 
Additional Duties 

(SUS) 

$145,000.00 State 

6.. Nadia Gadson Moses Asst Dean and Program Director 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUBR) 

$74,000.00 Federal 

7.     Ursula Ransburg Title IX Investigator/ Campus Safety 
& Clery Act Coordinator 

New Position 

(SULC) 

$78,000.00        
State 

8.     Tracie Washington Title IX Director 
New Position 

(SULC) 

$99,000.00 Federal 

9. Clarence Williams Director of Admissions and Recruitment 
New Position 

(SUNO) 

$70,000.00 State 



1 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
             SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

Committee of the Whole  
Friday, March 12, 2021 

9:00 a.m. 
Virtual Meeting 

 
Minutes 

 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chairman 
Attorney Domoine Rutledge.  The invocation was given by Father Thowatermas Clark, S.J., , Pastor of 
Immaculate Conception Catholic Church in Scotlandville  and the Priest at St. Joseph Chapel and Martin 
Luther King, Jr. Catholic student Center on the Southern University Baton Rouge Campus.   

Roll Call by Dr. Ray Belton. 
 
All Board Members Present:  Chairman Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Vice Chairman Atty. Edwin Shorty, Atty 
Jody Amedee, Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Mr. Bakari Garvey, Mr. 
Sam Gilliam, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Ms. Christy Reeves, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon 
Tarver II, Rev. Samuel Tolbert, Dr. Rani Whitfield, and Ms. Arlanda Williams 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Ms. Christy Reeves, the agenda was recommended 
for adoption.   

Motion Approved. 

AGENDA ITEM 5:  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

A.  Above and Beyond Award  
Presented by Mr. Pitts and Mr. Wade from the Office of Facilities Service to Mr. Ralph   
Anthony Scott, Carpenter Foreman in the Office of Facilities Service.  Mr. Anthony started in 
September 2018.  In attendance was Mr. Pitts, Mr. Wade and the facilities service team gathered 
to support him. Mr. Pitts  brought greetings from the Department of facility services.  He 
mentioned briefly how Mr. Scott will be remembered for providing a safe space for people to 
return to work and thrive.  He assisted with measuring and installing Plexiglass in the offices 
throughout the campus during the pandemic.  He thanked Mr. Scott and told him “it was an 
honor and a pleasure to serve alongside with you.”   Mr. Wade mentioned Mr. Scott was and 
added value to their department.  He spoke about how Mr. Scott  was detailed and will get his 
work done.  He thanked Mr. Scott for being “the leader who had the motivation to  go above 
and beyond.” 
Mr. Scott thanked God for good health and thanked the facilities service department along with 
Mr. Pitts and Mr. Wade and lastly he thanked Southern University and the students who are 
like family.   
Chairman Attorney Rutledge thanked Mr. Scott on behalf of the board, Dr. Belton, and the 
entire Southern University family. He presented him with the plaque.  Photo was taking with 
the entire team and Mr. Scott along with Chairman Rutledge and Dr. Belton.   



2 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chairman Rutledge acknowledged there were a few public comments.  One is a public comment 
from a Dr. Tonya Rose, who has expressed due process issues with our tenure and promotion 
process. He mentioned,  “I did speak to Dr. Rose. She called me and I conveyed her concerns to 
Dr. Belton, and I'm hopeful that Dr. Belton and Dr. Sahoo and the others will get with her and 
address her concerns, as I believe they are legitimate.”  The second public comment from Anthony 
I. Igiede. He is from the Southern University of Baton Rouge Faculty Senate in sociology. . He 
merely wishes to convey on behalf of the faculty senate condolences and convey them to the family 
of Dr. Kamran Abdullahi who is a longtime faculty member here on the Baton Rouge campus who 
recently passed away. Chairman Rutledge acknowledged there was another public comment related 
to the Southern University Law Center. He stated. “However, it does not align to an item that's on 
the agenda. But a letter was attached to a communication that was emailed to Mrs. Taylor- Jarrell. 
Board members, I’ve asked Mrs. Taylor-Jarrell to share the email with you, so she will be 
forwarding that email to you this morning.” 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  ACTION ITEM(s): 

There was a motion by Mr. Myron Lawson and second by Mrs. Ann Smith to approve Action Item 7A.  

Motion Approved  

A.  Request Approval of the Minutes from February 12, 2021 meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors    

There was a global motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and second by Ms. Christy Reeves to approve in global 
(action items 7B – 7E) 
 
Motion Approved 
 

Brief Comments were provided by Chancellor Pierre (SULC) on Item 7B, Chancellor McMeans 
(SUAREC) on Item 7C and Chancellor Ammons on Item 7D and 7E.  They were all  available for any 
questions the board members may have.  There were none other than Chairman Rutledge congratulating 
Dr. Ammons on Item D and he mentioned he was impressed with the list of students and confirmed that 
Dr. Ammons had collaborated with Dr. Sandra Brown which Dr. Ammons agreed he did.   

 
B. Request Approval of the Law, Agriculture, Arts, Business, Science, Engineering, and 

Technology (LA2B-SET) Collaboration Initiative to Enhance Faculty Development and 
Student Career Opportunities (SULC) 
 
 

C. Request Approval of MOU Between Southern University Agricultural Research and 
Extension Center and Davis Farms, INC. to solidify an Agricultural Partnership relative 
to Research, Extension and Teaching (SUAREC)  
 

D. Request to Establish Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) program at Southern 
University at New Orleans for the 2022-2023 Academic Year (SUNO) 
 



3 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 

E. Request Approval of MOU Between Southern University at New Orleans and Deep South 
Economic Mobility Collaborative to Enhance Economic Development and Business 
Procurement Opportunities (SUNO) 
 

There was a global motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and second by Dr. Leon Tarver to approve in global 
(action items 7F – 7I ) 

 
Motion approved.  
 
Brief comments were provided by Chancellor Pierre (SULC) and Dr, Appeaning (SUS and SUBR).  They 
both were available for any questions the board members may have.  Dr. Tarver asked Chancellor Pierre 
“what type of position would the individual be in, would it be a full time or tenure track?”   Chancellor 
Pierre replied, “full time.  He expects this to be a greater teaching role and not expecting the individual to 
do what a tenure track professor would do.”  He gave a summery of professors.  Dr.  Tarver thanked 
Chancellor Pierre for the explanation.  There were no other questions.  Dr. Appeaning gave a brief summary 
of the polies and there were no additional questions.   

 
F. Request Approval to Create a New Academic Title of Professor from Practice at the Southern 

University Law Center (SULC)  
 
G. Request Approval of Cybersecurity Policy to establish the guiding principles for securing 

Information technology (IT) resources (SUS) 
 
H. Request Approval of Information Security Policy Plan to Safeguard Campus Data and Information 

(SUS) 
 
I. Request Approval of Graduate Council Policy for Southern University at Baton Rouge (SUBR) 
 

 
There was a global motion by Mr. Myron Lawson and second by Dr. Leon Tarver to approve in global 
(action items 7J – 7L) 

 
Motion approved.  
 
Brief comments were provided by Chancellor Ellis (SUSLA) om Item 7J and 7K.  He mentioned, Item 7J is an 
endowed scholarship made possible with a $30k private donation from the Brookshire Grocery Company.  The 
donation has been matched with $30k from the Title III Fund for endowment support, totaling $60k in non-state 
contributions.  The private donation will be leveraged with a request for $40k in matching state dollars from the La 
Board of Regents to fully enow the fund at $100k.  The Board of Regents established the First Generation 
Undergraduate Scholarship match program for the purpose of increasing college access and success for low-income 
and first-generation students.  Item 7K is an endowed scholarship made possible with a $50k private donation from 
the Alpha Kappa Alpha Educational Advancement Foundation, Incorporated.  The donation has been matched with 
$10k from the Title III Fund for endowment support, totaling, $60k in non-state contributions.  The private donation 
will be leveraged with a request for $40k in matching state dollars from the La Board of Regents to fully endow the 
fund at $100k.  The Board of Regents established the First-Generation Undergraduate Scholarship match program 
for the purpose of increasing college access and success for low-income and first-generation students.   

J. Request Approval to Establish the Brookshire’s-Super 1 First-Generation Endowed Scholarship at 
Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA) 

 







6 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
Chancellor Pierre explained how the table was completed.  He mentioned the individuals were separated 
between individuals recommended for approval of tenure and others for tenure track appointments.  He 
discussed the evaluation process. He also discussed each individual in detail.  There were no additional 
questions or concerns after Chancellor Pierre discussion.  
 
There was a motion by Dr. Sam, Gilliam and second by Dr. Leon Tarver to approve Action items 7P. 
 
Motion approved.  
 

P. Request Approval of Recommended Tenure and Tenure Track Faculty Appointments to Southern 
University Law Center for the 2021-2022 Academic Year (SULC)   

Deleso Alford  Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$143,100.00 State 

Linh Dai Assistant Prof and Fellow of the  
St. Louis A. Berry Civil Rights and Justice Institute 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

Charletta Fortson Director of the Common Law Bar Preparation 
Program and Assistant Professor of Law 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$132,000.00 Federal 

Phebe Poydras Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$146, 280.00 State 

Mark Roark Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$119,059.20 State 

Greg Sergienko Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs 
/Professor of Law 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$153,000.00 Federal 

Kenya Smith Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$114,120.00 State 

Ryan Stoa Associate Prof. and Fellow of Cannabis and Hemp 
Law and Policy Institute  

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

Shandrea Williams Associate Professor of Law 
Tenure Track 

(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

 

Chairman Rutledge mentioned there were some new appointments on Item Q.  He acknowledged Dr. 
Ammons who he asked to introduce  them.  Dr. Ammons introduced Mr. Adriel Hilton and Ms. Kim Rugon. 
He gave a brief background for each.  Mr. Adriel Hilton  and Ms. Rugon both were allowed the opportunity 
to speak to the board which they both thanked the board for their time and they mentioned  they are looking 
forward to working with Dr. Ammons and the NOLA community.  Mr. Sam Gilliam welcomed the new 
employees.   
 
Chairman Rutledge recognized Dr. Belton who expressed his appreciation for consideration of all 
applicants and he wanted to speak specifically about Dr. Katara Williams.  Dr. Belton, mentioned “Dr. 



7 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
Williams has done an exceptional job assuming additional responsibilities and advancing on behalf of the 
Southern University System.  He wanted to express his appreciation to the board for recognizing her 
formally by way of this endorsement and his appreciation for them having done so.”   
 
Dr. Ammons spoke on behalf of Dr. Torin Sanders.  He thanked him for his significant contribution to the 
growth of the university and the School of Social Work.  
 
Chairman Rutledge congratulated Dr. Katara Williams and Dr. Torin Sanders.  
 
There was a motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and second by Mr. Richard Hilliard to approve Action items 
7Q. 
 
Motion approved.  
 

Q. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000* 
 

1.  Adriel Hilton Vice-Chancellor for Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management 

New Appointment 
(SUNO) 

$120,000.00 State 

2. Lucretia Jenkins Asstistant Director in the Office of Institutional 
Effectiveness 

Additional responsibilities 
 (SUBR) 

$62,295.00 Federal 

3. Kim Rugon Vice-Chancellor for Advancement 
New Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$120,000.00 State 

4. Torin Sanders Director of Online Certificate Program 
New Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$75,300.00 Federal/ 
State 

5. Michael Thomas 
 

Director of Marketing and University 
Relations 

New Appointment 
 (SUSLA) 

$60,000.00 State 

6. Katara Williams Chief of Staff/Executive Director for  
Strategic Initiatives 

Additional Responsibilities/Title Change 

$145,000.00 State 

7. LaTonya Wright Interim Director of Records and Registration 
Continuation 

(SULC) 

$83, 700.00 State 

 

There was a global motion by Ms. Christy Reeves and second by Dr. Rani Whitfield to  global (action items 
7R – 7S). 
 
Motion approved.  
 
Chairman Rutledge asked Chancellor Pierre to give a brief discussion on Items 7R and 7S.   
 
Chancellor Pierre stated, “As for Item 7R, the law center is blessed to have many endowed professorships 
and some of our faculty members who held those endowed professorships recently retired and those 
positions became vacant. So, in accordance with the procedures and processes that we have by the Board 



8 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
of Regents and with our own Southern University Law Center, the faculty appointment retention promotion 
and tenure committee met and evaluated the applications for endowed professorship and selected Professor 
Deleso Alford, and Professor Kenya Smith for the two endowed professorships that were vacant. And they 
have been approved by that committee and I am prepared with their recommendation. So I asked the board 
to grant them the endowed professorship.   
 
Chancellor Pierre stated, “Item 7S with respect to the BA-7, just as an overview, it's prepared because we 
have been very fortunate to have a growth in enrollment, that we have had additional revenue that we did 
not anticipate, or at least we had not originally budgeted for. And that is the reason for the request for the 
BA-7. Mr. McClinton can probably give you more details because I let him and Mr. Hall, carry through 
all the managing the numbers and all of the stuff that goes with it, but I just try to keep pushing to make 
sure that we're in a good spot, but I want to thank Mr. Hall for all of his hard work and, and Mr. 
McClinton for making sure that we stay on top of these kinds of things”. 
Mr. McClinton agreed with Chancellor Pierre and again mentioned “the enrollment increased and there 
was an increase in revenue, therefore a BA-7 is required to be prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Regents.” 
 

R. Request Approval to Grant Endowed Professorships to the following for the 2021-2022 
Academic Year: (SULC)  
 

1. Deleso Alford  
2. Kenya Smith  

 
S. Request Approval of BA-7 for the Southern University Law Center (SULC) 
 
T. Resolutions 

Dr. Katara Williams, Chief of Staff read resolutions and commendations for the following:   

• Dr. Kamran Abdollahi 
• Ms. Marva Sue Jackson 
• Ms. Gloria Spears Wright 
• Ms. Bessie Mae Theus 

 There were additions: 

• Mr. Marquis Jones – SUSLA Connect Student   
• Mr. Michael Oko – Brother of Professor Oko at SULC 

Received a resolution from Dr. Barbara Carpenter on behalf of the La House of Representative 

Upon Motion from Mr. Myron Lawson to approve the read resolutions with the additions and Dr. 
Tarver second the motion.   

Motion Approved. 

8. Information Items 

A. Finance Update 
 



9 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
      1.  Interim Financial Reports 

The Financial report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 as of February 28, 2021 was provided by Mr. 
McClinton for all campuses. He mentioned “the detailed information is provided in the board packet for 
each campus.  He mentioned, “the last time we talked I indicated that we were still in the registration 
process, well those dollars have been posted now and the revenues have actually materialized. There were 
a few campuses that had a shortfall in revenue. In some cases, they are reducing their expenditures and in 
other cases, using Cares Act dollars. So at this point we have made whatever adjustments necessary to 
end with a balanced budget.” 
Mr. McClinton mentioned he would entertain any questions from the members regarding the interim 
financial report.  There were none.   
 

B. Facilities Planning Project Updates (SUS) 

Mr. Eli Guillory mentioned, “the report included in the packet,  you will notice is mainly concentrated on 
the severe winter freezing temperatures that caused damages on various parts of the campuses throughout 
the system.”  He discussed the water line breaks and electrical systems which will need to be enhanced in 
order to prevent future winter temperatures to withstand that in the future.  He continue to request reports 
from the campuses.  After receiving the reports, Mr. Guillory will have a more detailed report. He discussed, 
“I'm excited to report that I will be meeting with Dean Andrews, and a couple of his committee members 
to discuss the future college of business building facility.  We're going to look at possibly anywhere from 
80 to 100,000 square foot facility. I've also started to look at a future football complex for the lab school. 
So this will complete my report. If you have any questions I will be here to answer.” 
Dr. Davis congratulated Mr. Guillory and the faculty of the College of Business.  He mentioned  “this new 
building will position the university to be competitive with a number of other institutions who have built 
Colleges of Business.   He is excited about seeing the rendering of the new facility.” Mr. Guillory thanked 
Dr. Davis and told him he will make sure he is added to the contact list for the meetings.  Chairman Rutledge 
asked if there were other questions or concerns. 
Mr. Myron Lawson expressed his concerns about the infrastructure system wide.  He inquired about a 
comprehensive look across the system.  He wanted to know if there was a report he could review?  Mr. 
Guillory responded there is a report that has been established 20 years ago.  He discussed the infrastructure 
in detail.  Mr. Lawson questioned the 20 year report.   
Mrs. Ann Smith asked Mr. Guillory to give a brief report on the SULS Athletic Department he discussed 
earlier.  Mr. Guillory gave details and mentioned “the project was in discussion process right now.  When 
it is finalized, he said it will be submitted to the BOS for a future approval..  Not final, just in discussion. “ 
Chairman Rutledge discussed the shelf life of a  facility assessment being less than 10 years.  He asked Mr. 
Guillory and Dr. Belton to “give thought to an updated comprehensive facility assessment to include water 
and sewer.” He requested this for Baton Rouge Landmass, Shreveport, and New Orleans.  There was 
discussion around how the residential housing look as far as the condensation on the building.  In 
conversation as to cost for reconfiguring and starting this update in the summer.  Mr. Chairman encouraged 
Dr. Belton and Mr. Guillory to take a look at the buildings and consider pressure washing them.  The 
appearance is very important for guests coming on campus.” 
No other observations.      

 
C. President’s Reports 

Dr. Belton thanked Dr. Robyn Merrick for her efforts and her team for facilitating Founder’s Day 
activities for the Baton Rouge campus. He mentioned “there were several events held during the week.” 
“We were able to facilitate a convocation on Tuesday this week, actually on today represents spirit day 



10 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
for the Southern University Alumni Federation, where they are facilitating a scholarship drive that invites 
members throughout our community and, of course, members of this board to join to advance a Memorial 
Brick Wall. That brick actually costs $500. But we certainly would welcome your participation in 
supporting the scholarship fund. One of the major activities that we facilitated this week was the 
acknowledgement of faculty, staff and administrators who have contributed to advancing the mission of 
Southern University over the years.  We recognize members who had fulfilled 10 years of service 20,30, 
40 and one individual who had contributed more than 50 years of service to Southern University. And 
that individual is with us today in the name of Mr. Flandus McClinton.” Dr. Belton publicly 
acknowledged  Mr. McClinton for his service to Southern University.  Dr. Belton also gave a brief update 
on the resources provided to higher education through the cares act.  He discussed how the university is 
continually serving faculty and staff and now students with the vaccinations.  He mentioned, “We have 
scheduled drive through vaccines through the work of board member Christy Reeves, which we are 
positioned to facilitate and serve more than 2000 citizens in our community by way of a drive thru 
location at the FG Clark Activity Center this weekend.”  And finally, Dr. Belton wanted to share, “the 
governor is moving toward phase three in terms of reacting to this global pandemic, we are not prepared 
at this point to go to phase three, we are working on a plan that would gradually move us to that point. 
But I will say to you that we are planning for the fall of 2021. And at this point we are optimistic that we 
will facilitate an environment that will be comparable to the schedule and activities that would resemble 
what was in place in Fall 2019 prior to the pandemic. And so we are optimistic that we will be facilitating 
and hosting students that would resemble some sense of normalcy. And that would enable us to provide 
for our stakeholders an environment that speaks to the Southern University experience in the fall 2021. Of 
course, we nevertheless will be cautious and be guided by science and by those who advise us along the 
way. But we are optimistic that may unfold in that manner. Thank you, Mr. Chair. That is my report.” 
 
Chairman Rutledge Thanked Dr. Belton and asked Ms. Reeves if she would like to add anything 
regarding the availability at Ochsner for the Johnson and Johnson vaccine? 
 
Ms. Reeves  mentioned they have Pfizer Madonna j&j vaccinations. “We have a lot of additional slots 
that have come available for this weekend and next week. But for any, anyone who is eligible, just call the 
844-888-2772 number. And you can actually say which preference you have across the entire state, we 
have this kind of surplus. So we're excited about that and any questions you might have, feel free to reach 
out to me directly.” 
 
Chairman Rutledge thanked Ms. Reeves and he mentioned that Senator Barrow sent him a message that 
the Johnson and Johnson vaccine is available today at the Zachary youth Park. “Mrs. Taylor-Jarrell will 
forward the message to you via email board members and you can share it accordingly. Any questions of 
Dr. Belton regarding his report colleagues?” 
There were none.   

 
D. Campus Reports 

Dr. Ammons (SUNO) – Dr. Ammons “thanked the board for the approval of what he think is some really 
impactful initiatives at Southern University in New Orleans, especially the Bachelor of Science in 
Nursing program, and the approval of the new members of the administrative team.” He thanked the New 
Orleans community for their enthusiastic support of the university especially as it relates to the Bachelor 
of Science in Nursing and all of the partners who he mentioned earlier. Dr Ammons mentioned, Ms. 
Reeves I definitely want to continue to build on the relationship with Ochsner health in the New Orleans 



11 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
community and all of the work that we have already done together as it relates to COVID.”  Dr. Ammons 
informed the board that the Chancellor's report is in their packet.  He gave a brief report in reference to 
the vaccinations for the SUNO Community.  He discussed the accreditation at SUNO.  He spoke of the 
mock and virtual visits.   Dr. Ammons thanked the board members and everyone for their support. He 
mentioned “all of that support is paying off as we get ready to go into the last stage now for the next 10 
years of accreditation. So Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report.” There were no additional questions.   

Dr. Ellis (SUSLA) – Dr. Ellis mentioned the entire Chancellor's report is included in the board packet. 
However, there are some items Dr. Ellis would like to highlight. He gave a brief report in reference to the 
vaccinations for the SUSLA Community.  “LSU health has provided over 40,000 vaccinations to this 
area.”  Dr. Ellis mentioned, “about two weeks ago, we signed the historic agreement with the country of 
Uganda and  the International University there in Uganda to begin an international exchange program 
whereby our students can start participating in some of their academic programs and their students can 
begin participating in some of ours via online and hopefully as this pandemic subsides, There will be 
actual physical exchanges both with students and faculty.”  Dr. Ellis announced that SUSLA is one of the 
13 HBCU hubs that were chosen  to serve as a propel center who serves as resources to the community to 
help with racial inequity and digital divide in the areas of coding and programming.  Apple announced 
they would donate about $100 million that it was focusing on social and racial equity.”  Dr. Ellis also 
spoke about the La State designation as well as the National designation for Barksdale Air Force and the 
military institutions.  Dr. Ellis closed by acknowledging Dr. Alan Jackson for all his assistance to the 
students during the snowstorm.  He mentioned “And so we're very proud of him for going above and 
beyond. That concludes my report. And I'll take any questions if you have any.” 
There were no additional questions.  Chairman Rutledge mentioned he was in Shreveport earlier in the 
week for business and he thanked Dr. Ellis for taking time on such short notice to sort of give he, the 
chairman of the Senate Education Committee, and Senator Cleo fields, a tour of the facilities and mention 
the wonderful programs that are underway.  
 
Dr. McMeans (SUAREC) –  Dr. McMeans acknowledge, “It is indeed an honor to come before you to 
give a brief report and I'll end my report by further acknowledging our colleague who recently passed, Dr. 
Abdullah.”  Dr. McMeans mention the detailed Chancellor's report is in the board packet. “March 15. 
Through the 19th is our ag week celebration. During that week, we showcase how Southern University's 
College of Agricultural Family and Consumer Sciences and also LSU College of Agriculture are making 
a difference in not only Louisiana but the world. We will have an event each day, next week. And of 
course, most of it is tailored around our students.” The Southern University Ag Center will be hosting its 
79th livestock show on March 25. And it will be from 9am to 2pm. And it will be virtual. Because of the 
current status we decided back in the fall that we will deliver this virtually.  We're the only HBCU with 
the livestock show. So that is something that's important.  “To give an update since A number of 
individuals have been emailing and calling regarding some of the Congressional language coming out 
about black disadvantaged farmers and ranchers. Over the next two or three meetings, I will give you 
updates on how the Ag Center, specifically the cooperative extension program is engaging those of black 
farmers disadvantaged minority farmers. If you notice in the recent act that Dr. Belton mentioned earlier, 
there's $5 billion in therefore for black farmers, out away from loans for 1890s to support sales group, and 
a number of things and Chancellor Pierre and I will be working together to look at how we can 
collaborate on some of these efforts around our black farmers. And last but not least, Dr. Williams did an 
outstanding job of updating us on the recent passing of Dr. Abdullah.  Dr. McMeans gave some 
background information and acknowledge Dr. Abdullah.  He mentioned he will be missed. That 
concludes my report” 



12 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
 
Chancellor Pierre (SULC) –  Chancellor Pierre mentioned, “I want to thank the board for its continuous 
and constant support of the initiatives for Southern University Law Center that allow us to do bigger and 
better things as we progress in and the work that we do. I just wanted to say a couple of things. One, 
obviously next month, we will be meeting in Shreveport. And we will have a report on the progress of our 
initiative to bring legal education to Shreveport. Next year, if all goes well, in the spring of 2022. We'll 
start with the semester in Shreveport initiative that we will bring a report on as well. And I think later this 
month, members of the Law Center staff will be going to the downtown St. Memorial Library to work on 
some things that we’ve been working with Dr. Ellis on the for the downtown location. Chancellor Pierre 
thanked  Dr. Ellis and for having working with us on the Shreveport situation and thanked Dr. McMeans 
for the work they’ve been doing together. He mentioned. One thing obviously that I did not get a chance 
to talk about, the Thurgood Marshall College Fund has essentially created a situation where the John 
Deere corporation is funding three of the Southern University Law Center students to work with the land 
Assistance Fund in Atlanta for internships this summer. It’ll be a 12 week internships, to work on the 
issue of black agricultural land loss. So we've been involved a little bit in a lot of different things. So 
again, we just look forward to working with all the various units of the Southern University system to 
make our work be more fruitful. Thank you.” 
 
Dr. Sahoo (SUBR) –  Dr. Sahoo thanked the board and the president for their support.  He mentioned the 
detailed report is in the board packet.  He mentioned, “We did go through an accreditation visit for the 
Doctor of Nursing Practice program. I would like to compliment and commend the leadership in the 
College of Nursing Dean Sandra Brown, the faculty staff and the students for presenting Southern 
University in such a positive way, and also demonstrating how we are committed to continuous 
improvement. I would also like to mention that we are working very closely collaboratively with the 
mayor's office of Baton Rouge to find ways how our students can take advantage of internships and 
subsequent placements. And this is just one company that is interested in collaborating with us. But we 
are going to use this model and working with the mayor's office to make sure that experiential learning 
internship opportunities and subsequent placement is available to all our students. I also want to end by 
asking each of you to mark your calendar on May 14, we plan to host an in person commencement 
ceremony for the Southern University Baton Rouge campus at our stadium.. And so I would like to invite 
you to be present.  This concludes my report.” 
 

9. Other Business 

Chairman Rutledge  mentioned he had a few housekeeping matters.  He discussed the in person meeting 
in April will be in Shreveport.  As for the plans for the weekend,  There will be a reception on Thursday 
night and board meeting on Friday morning.  The location has yet to be determined. He mentioned 
collaborating with Dr. Ellis and Chancellor Pierre to learn a little bit more information on the initiatives 
underway at the Shreveport Campus as well as the Law Center.  He asked the members to confirm their 
presence and participation with Mrs. Taylor-Jarrell so they can be accommodated appropriately.  He 
mentioned the game day accommodations are still in the works.  He is working with Athletic Director 
Banks.  Chairman Rutledge mentioned the sexual harassment trainings as well as other trainings the board 
members are required to complete.  He asked all board members to please take the opportunity to 
complete the trainings when they receive the emails. He asked if there were any additional questions or 
comments and Mr. Gilliam commended all the campuses for significant increases in dual enrollment.  He 
requested that each campus would give a brief update at the meeting to be held in Shreveport next month.  



13 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
Chairman Rutledge agreed and mentioned Dr. Belton will make certain that the reports are complete.  Mr. 
Gilliam thanked Mr. Chairman and Dr. Belton and mentioned they are excited about hosting everyone in 
April.  Chairman Rutledge thanked Mr. Gilliam and asked for an adjournment of meeting.    

10. Adjournment 
 Ms. Christy Reeves made a motion to adjourn.  Meeting was adjourned.   
 

 
*Pursuant to La R.S. 42:17 Executive Session May be Required. 
 
 







  

 

 

 

Resolution  

2021 SPRING COMMENCEMENT 
 
 

Whereas, Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana 2021 Spring Commencement is 

scheduled on Saturday, May 22, 2021 at the Independence Stadium 3301 Pershing Blvd, 
Shreveport, LA 71109 

 

Whereas, there are approximately 244 prospective candidates for graduation who 

expect to receive 179 prospective Associate Degrees, 39 Certificates, and 8 Diplomas from 
Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana. 

 

Now Therefore Be It Resolved  that the degrees and certificates will be conferred 

upon the candidates for graduation during the 2021 Spring Commencement of SUSLA 
presented by Dr. Ray L. Belton., President for the Southern University System, Dr. Rodney 
A. Ellis, Chancellor for Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana, upon the approval 
and recommendations of the Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, the Faculty, and the 
appropriate administrative staff, and they are hereby approved, and; 

 

Be It Further Resolved that the list of graduates may be supplemented or modified 

as necessary to carry out the intent of this resolution. 
 

Certification 

We, the duly qualified officers of the Board of Supervisors for the Southern University 

System, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Southern University System Board of Supervisors at its regular meeting on 
the 16th day of April 2021.     

                                                       _______________________________                   
     Dr. Ray L. Belton 
     President-Chancellor  
     Southern University System 
 

                                                                                                                    
_________________________________________________ 

     Atty Domoine D. Rutledge 
     Chairman of the Board 
     Southern University System Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 











Gayle Benson 
Owner 
 
Gayle Benson provides leadership for the New Orleans Saints and New Orleans 
Pelicans as Owner, succeeding her husband, Tom Benson, who passed away on March 
15, 2018, after serving as the Owner of the Saints since 1985 and the Pelicans 
franchise since 2012. The New Orleans native is an accomplished business 
professional and philanthropist with strong ties to the local community and who is 
dedicated to contributing to the growth and enhancement of the Gulf South region. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Benson worked together to build championship-level NFL and NBA 
organizations, housed in state-of-the-art facilities at the Ochsner Sports Performance 
Center, Mercedes-Benz Superdome and Smoothie King Center, while making a positive 
impact in the community away from the football field and basketball court as well. 
 
With the Saints franchise under the guidance of Mr. and Mrs. Benson, the team has 
reached new heights since 2006, when they entrusted Executive-Vice 
President/General Manger Mickey Loomis to hire Sean Payton as head coach and sign 
unrestricted free agent quarterback Drew Brees. Since those moves, the franchise has 
reached its highest point of success, posting a 146-93 record from 2006-19, featuring 
eight playoff berths, six division titles, three NFC Championship appearances and the 
Super Bowl XLIV title. Off-the-field, the Mercedes-Benz Superdome has been 
completely renovated and is currently undergoing a multiple-phase enhancement. 
Saints games have been sold-out on a season ticket basis for every campaign since 
2006, with a waiting list of over 73,000 and 145 consecutive sellouts going into 2020. 
The NFL’s League Observation Program and third party Expert Review Audits of all 32 
teams has resulted in the Saints being ranked with the highest overall score for Fan 
Gameday Satisfaction each of the past three seasons.The club has also positioned 
itself as a leader in the community, assisting with the recovery from several disasters, 
while also working to enhance the region as a whole. 
 
In Mrs. Benson’s first two seasons of ownership, New Orleans has posted back-to-back 
13-3 campaigns and NFC South division titles, reaching the NFC Championship in the 
2018 campaign. No team has matched their 14 road victories since 2018. Their 27 wins 
(regular season and postseason) rank second in the NFL during the tw-season period. 
Twelve Saints have received a total of nineteen Pro Bowl selections, including a 
franchise-record eleven players in 2019. Eight Saints over the past two seasons have 
received Associated Press All-Pro honors, three – defensive end Cameron Jordan, 
tackle Ryan Ramczyk and wide receiver Michael Thomas both seasons. In 2019, 
Thomas set the NFL single-season record for receptions in a season as he was 
selected as the Associated Press NFL Offensive Player of the Year. Over the past two 
seasons, Brees has become the league’s all-time leader in completions, passing 
yardage and touchdown passes. 



 
Following in the footsteps of her late husband, who played a significant role in the city of 
New Orleans hosting five Super Bowls during his ownership and wielded extensive 
influence and respect among owners with a long tenure as Chairman of the Finance 
Committee, Mrs. Benson has become instrumental with her influence and leadership in 
league issues, serving on the Audit, Business Ventures and Hall of Fame Committees.   
She helped the city land Super Bowl LVII to be played in 2024, which will mark the 11th 
time that Louisiana and the Crescent City will serve as a host, tying with Miami for the 
most Super Bowls by a host city. The economic impact of Super Bowl XLVII, played in 
2013, which Mr. Benson successfully campaigned for, was $480 million, not to mention 
the exposure and charitable contributions the NFL makes during Super Bowl week that 
extends for generations. Mrs. Benson‘s committed to continuing to bring Super Bowls to 
New Orleans. She is also committed to improving the game at the league level. In the 
2019 offseason she was influential at the League meetings in the passage of a rules 
change expanding the instant replay review and challenge process. 
 
Immediately upon Mr. and Mrs. Benson’s purchase of the former Hornets franchise from 
the NBA in 2012, construction began on a state-of-the-art basketball practice facility to 
house the entire organization together and the franchise would also be rebranded as 
the Pelicans. Through agreements with the State of Louisiana upon the purchase of the 
Pelicans, the Smoothie King Center has undergone a complete renovation since the 
2012 purchase, featuring a new center-hung HD scoreboard, which debuted in 2015, 
along with several additional fan upgrades. Through this commitment, NBA All-Star 
Weekend was awarded to New Orleans in 2014 and 2017, making the city one of just 
six current NBA markets to host the mid-season event at least three times. Mrs. 
Benson, recently appointed as a member of the NBA’s Labor Relations Committee, has 
overseen a significant overhaul of the Pelicans organization in 2019. In April, she hired 
Executive Vice President of Basketball Operations David Griffin. Through the support of 
these organizational improvements by Mrs. Benson, combined with New Orleans 
winning the NBA Draft Lottery and selecting the 2018-19 AP College Player of the Year 
in Duke forward Zion Williamson with the first overall pick, the Pelicans have 
established a solid foundation for the 2019-20 season and beyond. 
 
Community investment and giving back have been hallmarks of Mr. and Mrs. Benson’s 
ownership of the Saints and Pelicans. This tradition continues under Mrs. Benson’s 
stewardship as she has further enriched the New Orleans community through her 
support to causes in the health and wellness, cancer care, education, arts and faith-
based sectors.  
 
As dedicated corporate citizens, the Saints and Pelicans annually put millions of dollars 
back into the community in financial support, in-kind donations, charitable appearances 
and donations of goods and services. Mrs. Benson’s philanthropic leadership has been 
recognized far and wide since becoming Owner.  



 
In March, 2018, she and Mr. Benson (posthumously), received a Dermot McGlinchey 
Lifetime Achievement Award from Tulane University, honoring those who have 
demonstrated service, volunteer involvement and commitment to Tulane and their 
hometown communities. In September, 2018, she was inducted into the University of 
New Orleans’ Hall of Distinction, along with her late husband (posthumously). In 2015, 
the couple were honored by the regional chapter of the Anti-Defamation League with 
the A.I. Botnick Torch of Liberty Award. In 2014, Mrs. Benson was honored by the New 
Orleans Council for Community and Justice with its Weiss Award, recognizing 
achievement for exceptional civic and humanitarian contributions. 
 
In 2019, Mrs. Benson received several important honors. She was honored by Xavier 
University of Louisiana with the Sister Maris Stella “Women of Faith” Award and was 
recognized by the United Negro College Fund with the group’s MASKED Award, for her 
support of educational opportunities for all. Mrs. Benson was honored by the Allstate 
Sugar Bowl Chapter of the National Football Foundation/College Football Hall of Fame 
with its Distinguished American Award. The National World War II Museum selected her 
as an American Spirit Medallion recipient. The Greater New Orleans Foundation 
honored Mrs. Benson with the organization’s Spark Plug Award, given to an individual 
whose philanthropy in the greater New Orleans community has been exemplary. 
 
In addition to serving on the boards of several local educational institutions and the New 
Orleans Museum of Art, Mrs. Benson also is a member of the Audubon Commission, 
which oversees the Audubon Nature Institute. 
 
Mrs. Benson’s been a longtime trusted and valued member of the local Catholic 
community, reflecting her deep faith. She’s worked tirelessly with the Archdiocese of New 
Orleans’ Catholic Charities organization and its umbrella agencies that feature nearly 50 
programs and three affiliated ministries that deliver health and human services to the poor 
and vulnerable in the eight parishes which the Archdiocese serves, as well as food and 
nutrition services statewide. Mrs. Benson has also worked closely with St. Louis 
Cathedral’s Rite of Christian Initiation for Adults (RCIA) program. Mrs. Benson’s support 
of the Church has been recognized on numerous occasions. She has received the Medal 
of the Order of St. Louis Award for her dedication to the Church. In 2010, she became an 
Honorary Oblate of Mary Immaculate. She holds a leadership role after being inducted as 
Dame Commander with Star in the Equestrian Order of the Holy Sepulchre of Jerusalem. 
In 2012, Mr. and Mrs. Benson received from Pope Benedict XVI the Pro Ecclesia et 
Pontifice award-for outstanding service to the Church and the Pontiff, the highest Papal 
award granted to a lay person. In recognition of their longstanding support of Catholic 
education, the couple also received the 2010 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Award from the 
National Catholic Educational Association. 

Mrs. Benson began her professional career in 1968 as a manager for noted New York-
based costume jeweler Celebrity Jewelry, overseeing and managing the daily operation 



of over 40 sales associates. She then branched out into real estate development, which 
allowed her to successfully integrate her passion for interior design with property 
management. Her first real estate transaction occurred in 1978 when she purchased a 
home in New Orleans’s Irish Channel and then sold the property eight months later after 
extensive restoration. She would go on to purchase, manage and eventually sell several 
more properties, primarily in the city’s Uptown district. 
 
In 1975, Mrs. Benson began a 30-year career in the design industry, a business where 
she achieved tremendous success. Throughout the course of her interior design career 
she was recognized with numerous professional awards and served as an inaugural 
member on the Louisiana State Board of Licensing for Interior Designers for four years. 
She directed numerous major design efforts with her clients, including the Mercedes-
Benz Superdome, several of the city’s most prestigious hotels, local supermarket chains 
and automobile dealerships. 
 
In 2000, Mrs. Benson worked with the Mercedes-Benz Superdome on renovations to 
the iconic New Orleans landmark’s third and fourth level public spaces, in addition to 
renovations on select suites. She also owned and developed a commercial real estate 
building on the corner of Laura and Octavia Streets, a women’s clothing private 
enterprise called “Toujours la Ligne” and a designer’s showroom called “Designers 
Resource” which served as a wholesale location for designers and architects seeking to 
purchase fabric, wall coverings and accessories. The Men of Fashion Committee 
recognized Mrs. Benson during her career as one of the “Ten Best Dressed Women in 
New Orleans”. 
 
In addition to her ownership of the Saints and Pelicans, Mrs. Benson established GMB 
Racing Stables in 2014 with an initial purchase of seven colts and hiring three veteran 
trainers, all with Louisiana ties. In 2016, two of the thoroughbreds, Mo Tom and Tom’s 
Ready participated in the Kentucky Derby. Her Lone Sailor horse ran in the 2018 
Kentucky Derby and Preakness. She owns Benson Farm at Greenwood Lodge in 
Lexington, Ky, a 1,000-acre farm. She also serves as the Owner of three local 
automotive dealerships, Best Chevrolet, Cadillac of New Orleans and Mercedes-Benz 
of New Orleans, Dixie Brewing Company, Benson Tower and recently partnered to 
purchase the Hyatt Regency New Orleans.  
 
Mrs. Benson was born in New Orleans and grew up in Old Algiers. She began her 
education in Catholic schools and in 1966 graduated from Martin Behrman High School. 
In 2019, she received an Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters from Loyola University 
New Orleans, where she was the commencement speaker. She also received an 
honorary degree, serving as Our Lady of Holy Cross College’s 2015 commencement 
keynote speaker. Mr. and Mrs. Benson married on October 29, 2004 at the Immaculate 
Conception Memorial Chapel in San Antonio, Texas. Mr. Benson died on March 15, 
2018.  





























































































































































































































































































































LA BoR – AA 2.05 - Oct 2015 

PROPOSAL to DEVELOP a NEW ACADEMIC CERTIFICATE PROGRAM  
(CAS, PAC, PBC, GC, PMC, PPC) 

Date: 3/28/2021 
Campus: Southern University at Shreveport Program: CIP, Certificate Designation, Title  

24.0102, CGS, Certificate of General Studies 
 

Institutional Contact Person & Contact Info (if clarification is needed) 
Dr. Lonnie McCray, Dean  
Arts, Humanities, Social Sciences, and Education  
3050 Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr.  
Shreveport, La. 71107  
lmccray@susla.edu  318-670-9363 
 
1. Certificate Description 
Describe the program concept: purpose and objectives; proposed curriculum; mode of delivery (on-site/hybrid/on-line). 
Indicate which courses are new; describe plan for rolling out new courses. 
The Certificate of General Studies is designed to provide students with a broad foundation of fundamental academic skills, 
primarily for personal growth or as preparation for further collegiate study. Furthermore, the acquisition of a certificate at an 
early stage of their careers allows students to gain confidence. Early success is essential for retention and for maintaining an 
interest in academics.  It also allows students who intend to transfer to four-year colleges the opportunity to choose courses that 
meet the admissions requirements of the receiving institution.  
 
Objectives:  
 
Upon completion of the Program the candidate will be able to: 
 

1. Apply educational skills needed to assist in the performance of job functions. 
2. Use effective communication skills to interact and provide services in an educational setting or laboratory.  
3. Transfer, if necessary, and enroll in additional courses at SUSLA or a four-year institution. 
4. To comprehend and perform course-specific mathematical problems.  
5. Develop critical thinking skills across the curriculum. 
6. Use library resources to research topics across the curriculum. 

 
Basic Structure:  
 
The program will be administered by the Division of Arts, Humanities, Social Sciences, and Education and the Division of Business, 
Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics.   
 
Mode of Delivery:  
 
Onsite/hybrid/on-line  
Currently we offer our General Studies Associate degree 100% online, which provides us the ability to offer the certificate in all 
three modes of delivery  
 
Basic Structure:  
 

First Semester  Sem. Hours  Second Semester  Sem. Hours  
Freshman Composition I 3 Freshman Composition II 3 
Math 3 Math  3 
Natural Sciences 3 Social Science   3  
Fine Arts  3 Elective  3 
Social Science  3 Elective 3 
    
    
    
 15  15 

 



LA BoR – AA 2.05 - Oct 2015 

Certificate program total: 30 semester hours  
 
Electives will depend on student academic and career pursuits.  
No new courses will need to be developed.  
 
 
2. Need  
Outline how this program is deemed essential for the wellbeing of the state, region, or academy (e.g., how is it relevant, how 
does it contribute to economic development or relate to current/evolving needs).  Identify similar programs in the state and 
explain why the proposed certificate is needed. 
The current retention rate for full-time students at SUSLA is 41%.  For part-time students, the retention rate is 46%.  The overall 
graduation rate for SUSLA is at 9% while our transfer student rate is at 27%.  With students receiving a certification at the mid-
point of an associate’s degree, it will provide the needed motivation for the student to complete the associate’s degree or 
transfer into a four-year program.  Studies suggest that students are more likely to succeed if the Associate degree is taken to 
completion prior to transfer.  The certificate program will provide a transfer point for the student to complete the associates or 
move into a Baccalaureate program.   
 
All colleges within the LCTCS system offer the Certificate of General Studies.  Being a two-year institution, SUSLA should provide 
this academic pathway for its students.   
 
3. Students 
Describe student interest. Project enrollment and productivity for the first 5 years; justify projections. 
For the 2017-2018 academic year, SUSLA graduated 302 students.  Allied Health and Nursing majors accounted for 183 students 
while 109 students were in other associate degree seeking programs.  The remaining graduates were in certificate only programs. 
Therefore, potentially, 109 students could have also received the Certificate of General Studies, more specifically 52 who 
graduated with an Associate of General Studies degree.  The 59% of students who are not normally retained (as noted above) 
could possibly exit SUSLA with a certificate even if they do not complete the associate’s degree.    Data for 2016-2017 show 319 
total graduates with 134 potential Certificate of General Studies recipients, more specifically 74 graduates from the Associate of 
General Studies program.  Data for 2015-2016 show 117 potential recipients, more specifically 70 graduates from the Associate of 
General Studies program.   
 
4.  Accreditation 
Describe plan for achieving program accreditation. 
The program does not require individual accreditation but will require SACS-COC approval to be offered.   
 
5.  Faculty, Administration, & Other Resources 
How will instructional needs be met: will additional faculty, facilities, equipment, or library resources be required? What 
department will deliver and oversee the proposed program? 
The Division of Arts, Humanities, Social Sciences, and Education and the Division of Business, Science, Technology, Engineering, 
and Math will administer the program.  Both Divisions currently have faculty advisors for the Associate of General Studies 
program.  No new faculty, facilities, equipment, or library resources will be required.   
 
6. Cost  
Summarize additional costs to offer the program. On separate budget sheet, estimate costs and revenues for the projected 
program for the first five years, indicating need for additional appropriations (if any).  
There will be no new/additional costs to operate the program.  Current faculty can teach in the certificate program and the 
courses needed are already in the course inventory.   
 
CERTIFICATIONS:  ____________________________________ _______  _______________ 

Primary Administrator for Proposed Certificate  Date 
 

____________________________________ _______  _______________ 
Provost/Chief Academic Officer    Date 

 
____________________________________ _______  _______________ 
Management Board/System Office    Date Approved















































































































































































Vice President for External Affairs and University Relations 
 
The SU System Vice President for External Affairs is a key leadership position reporting directly 
to the president- chancellor and manages initiatives that build and execute the SU brand, 
strengthen marketing and communications, foster strategic partnerships, and expand 
relationships with policy makers, industry leaders, and other influencers and stakeholders. The 
position is critical to the fulfillment of the System’s mission as we execute our strategic plan 
focused on promoting the Southern University brand through outreach and global engagement. 
 
The VP for External Affairs leads a unit of five offices including Alumni Affairs, Communications, 
Governmental Affairs, Special Events, and the SU Museums of Art. The Office of External Affairs 
has established and achieved aspirational objectives through strong and innovative leadership 
of the external affairs function that has System-wide reach and impact. 
 
Notably, the VP for External Affairs has direct oversight of communications, marketing, 
governmental affairs, and special events for the flagship campus. 
 
At the core of the Office of External Affairs mission-centric efforts are increasing and cultivating 
local and state community engagement opportunities and partnerships for the University, its 
students, faculty, staff, and alumni, at a crucial time -- particularly for the Baton Rouge campus. 
Prior to, and notably during the COVID-19 pandemic, the VP for External Affairs has facilitated 
and provided assistance with an increased demand for University outreach and assistance with 
humanitarian and community service work. The global pandemic and health emergency has 
created a heightened urgency for SU to take an expanded leadership role in community affairs 
and public service engagement. The Southern University Office of External Affairs, through an 
expanded dual role encompassing University Relations, will continue to answer the call to 
action and is ready to position SUBR and System campuses as a model of addressing community 
needs throughout the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond. 
 
The SU System Vice President for External Affairs and University Relations’ additional duties 
include coordinating with local and state agencies and partners as the University’s chief liaison 
for community engagement, increasing presence within the community through significant 
public speaking participation, serving on community task forces or roundtables and boards, and 
assisting or leading community events.  
 
Added responsibilities include: 
 

• Focus on implementing community outreach programs, coordinating community/public 
events and special project, and managing volunteers. 
 



• Represent the University on external community boards, committees, and task forces 
 

• Serve as a liaison between the University and external community 
 

• Support and advance University-wide community engagement and advise the President-
Chancellor of pertinent community issues affecting the institution 

 
• Increase effective relationships and partnerships with internal and external constituents 

 
• Represent the University to a variety of external constituencies and serve as University 

“ambassador” at community and private events, programs, meetings and other 
occasions requiring an executive presence  

 
• Work with System leaders and external stakeholders to guide community relations and 

engagement for the University to strengthen existing, and create new partnerships. 
 

• Manage initiatives to further the University's relationships with identified stakeholders 
 
 

Rev. 4.4.2021 



































































FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 43,442,284$        34,506,640$        8,935,644$           43,442,284$        -$                             79.4%

Statutory Dedicated 4,228,516             1,910,982             2,317,534             4,228,516             -                               45.2%

Federal 3,654,209             863,483                 2,790,726             3,654,209             -                               23.6%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 34,262,460           33,135,177           -                               33,135,177           (1,127,283)           96.7%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 31,256,081           30,767,006           -                               30,767,006           (489,075)               98.4%

    Tuition - Summer 6,993,497             2,642,692             4,979,934             7,622,626             629,129                 37.8%

    Out-of-State Fees 11,910,932           13,462,028           326,604                 13,788,632           1,877,700             113.0%

    Other 16,682,523           10,307,610           4,925,245             15,232,854           (1,449,669)           61.8%

Interagency Transfer 3,028,515             2,494,119             1,041,168             3,535,287             506,772                 82.4%

Total Revenues 155,459,017$   130,089,736$   25,316,855$      155,406,591$   (52,426)$             83.7%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 74,515,941$        57,509,689$        19,091,952$        76,601,641$        2,085,700$           77.2%

  Other Compensation 319,377                 114,583                 23,417                   138,000                 (181,377)               35.9%

  Related Benefits 34,034,650           25,190,991           8,376,092             33,567,082           (467,568)               74.0%

Total Personal Services 108,869,968$   82,815,263$      27,491,460$      110,306,723$   1,436,755$         76.1%

  Travel 1,034,510             63,577                   622,151                 685,728                 (348,782)               6.1%

  Operating Services 15,319,492           10,737,329           3,637,942             14,375,271           (944,221)               70.1%

  Supplies 1,845,900             754,778                 756,541                 1,511,319             (334,581)               40.9%

Total Operating Expenses 18,199,902$      11,555,684$      5,016,635$         16,572,318$      (1,627,584)$       63.5%

  Professional Services 2,604,772             1,475,429             1,030,787             2,506,216             (98,556)                 56.6%

  Other Charges 10,714,822           724,621                 7,361,883             8,086,504             (2,628,318)           6.8%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 6,238,234             3,474,622             2,763,612             6,238,234             -                               55.7%

Total Other Charges 19,557,828$      5,674,672$         11,156,282$      16,830,954$      (2,726,874)$       29.0%

  General Acquisitions 227,382                 47,796                   218,463                 266,259                 38,877                   21.0%

  Library Acquisitions 562,649                 322,505                 240,144                 562,649                 -                               57.3%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 790,031$             370,302$             458,606$             828,908$             38,877$               46.9%

  Scholarships 8,041,288             10,677,593           190,095                 10,867,688           2,826,400             132.8%

Total Expenditures 155,459,017$   111,093,513$   44,313,079$      155,406,592$   (52,425)$             71.5%

Southern University System

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  March 31, 2021 

Page 1



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 3,199,565$           3,541,346$           (341,781)$             3,199,565$           -$                             110.7%

Statutory Dedicated

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020

    Tuition - Spring 2021

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 3,199,565$         3,541,346$         (341,781)$           3,199,565$         -$                            110.7%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 1,649,530$           1,504,946$           487,342$              1,992,288$           342,758$              91.2%

  Other Compensation 88,000                   75,000                   13,000                   88,000                   -                               85.2%

  Related Benefits 769,942                 505,620                 313,941                 819,561                 49,619                   65.7%

Total Personal Services 2,507,472$         2,085,566$         814,283$             2,899,849$         392,377$             83.2%

  Travel 185,000                 7,626                      26,288                   33,914                   (151,086)               4.1%

  Operating Services 171,100                 65,363                   60,347                   125,710                 (45,390)                 38.2%

  Supplies 80,000                   21,257                   34,958                   56,215                   (23,785)                 26.6%

Total Operating Expenses 436,100$             94,246$               121,593$             215,839$             (220,261)$           21.6%

  Professional Services 94,000                   -                               20,000                   20,000                   (74,000)                 0.0%

  Other Charges 136,993                 -                               -                               -                               (136,993)               0.0%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers

Total Other Charges 230,993$             -$                            20,000$               20,000$               (210,993)$           0.0%

  General Acquisitions 25,000                   9,393                      54,484                   63,877                   38,877                   37.6%

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 25,000$               9,393$                  54,484$               63,877$               38,877$               37.6%

  Scholarships

Total Expenditures 3,199,565$         2,189,205$         1,010,360$         3,199,565$         -$                            68.4%

Southern University Board and System Administration

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  March 31, 2021 

Page 2



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 18,275,725$        13,528,785$        4,746,940$           18,275,725$        -$                             74.0%

Statutory Dedicated 1,593,248             726,552                 866,696                 1,593,248             -                               45.6%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 21,709,761           20,506,780           -                               20,506,780           (1,202,981)           94.5%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 19,487,148           18,907,110           -                               18,907,110           (580,038)               97.0%

    Tuition - Summer 4,963,498             1,322,877             3,599,702             4,922,579             (40,919)                 26.7%

    Out-of-State Fees 8,349,603             8,821,859             146,084                 8,967,943             618,340                 105.7%

    Other 7,671,356             4,245,891             4,294,268             8,540,159             868,803                 55.3%

Interagency Transfer 3,028,515             2,494,119             1,041,168             3,535,287             506,772                 82.4%

Total Revenues 85,078,854$      70,553,974$      14,694,857$      85,248,831$      169,977$             82.9%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 40,450,820$        31,377,167$        8,379,291$           39,756,459$        (694,361)$             77.6%

  Other Compensation 181,377                 -                               -                               -                               (181,377)               0.0%

  Related Benefits 18,669,613           14,650,380           3,091,023             17,741,402           (928,211)               78.5%

Total Personal Services 59,301,810$      46,027,547$      11,470,314$      57,497,861$      (1,803,949)$       77.6%

  Travel 268,210                 15,351                   84,747                   100,098                 (168,112)               5.7%

  Operating Services 8,662,277             6,469,648             1,301,087             7,770,735             (891,542)               74.7%

  Supplies 865,911                 446,243                 146,004                 592,247                 (273,664)               51.5%

Total Operating Expenses 9,796,398$         6,931,242$         1,531,838$         8,463,080$         (1,333,318)$       70.8%

  Professional Services 1,026,480             715,138                 113,867                 829,005                 (197,475)               69.7%

  Other Charges 3,805,700             228,039                 4,274,663             4,502,702             697,002                 6.0%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 4,017,497             1,937,816             2,079,681             4,017,497             -                               48.2%

Total Other Charges 8,849,677$         2,880,993$         6,468,211$         9,349,204$         499,527$             32.6%

  General Acquisitions 52,032                   7,758                      44,275                   52,032                   -                               14.9%

  Library Acquisitions 137,649                 101,410                 36,239                   137,649                 -                               73.7%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 189,681$             109,167$             80,514$               189,681$             -$                            57.6%

  Scholarships 6,941,288             9,749,005             -                               9,749,005             2,807,717             140.4%

Total Expenditures 85,078,854$      65,697,954$      19,550,877$      85,248,831$      169,977$             77.2%
   

Southern University Baton Rouge Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  March 31, 2021 

 The Southern University Baton Rouge Campus have allocated $2.2 million in CARES Act funds to ensure the budget remains balanced and operations 
continue due to revenue shortfall.

Page 3



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 3,735,319$           2,913,270$           822,049$              3,735,319$           -$                             78.0%

Statutory Dedicated 172,939                 78,543                   94,396                   172,939                 -                               45.4%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 3,823,146             4,583,457             -                               4,583,457             760,311                 119.9%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 3,499,336             4,413,269             -                               4,413,269             913,933                 126.1%

    Tuition - Summer 700,000                 282,946                 600,000                 882,946                 182,946                 40.4%

    Out-of-State Fees 2,658,500             4,103,411             99,000                   4,202,411             1,543,911             154.4%

    Other 3,286,762             3,681,884             100,977                 3,782,861             496,099                 112.0%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 17,876,002$      20,056,780$      1,716,422$         21,773,202$      3,897,200$         112.2%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 9,471,530$           7,828,504$           4,175,388$           12,003,891$        2,532,361$           82.7%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 3,609,686             2,496,853             1,586,648             4,083,501             473,815                 69.2%

Total Personal Services 13,081,216$      10,325,357$      5,762,036$         16,087,392$      3,006,176$         78.9%

  Travel 385,000                 27,414                   357,586                 385,000                 -                               7.1%

  Operating Services 1,690,629             626,599                 1,547,952             2,174,551             483,922                 37.1%

  Supplies 250,000                 101,364                 148,636                 250,000                 -                               40.5%

Total Operating Expenses 2,325,629$         755,378$             2,054,173$         2,809,551$         483,922$             32.5%

  Professional Services 1,220,590             681,325                 839,265                 1,520,590             300,000                 55.8%

  Other Charges 432,027                 199,429                 232,598                 432,027                 -                               46.2%

  Debt Services -                               -                          -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 366,540                 207,253                 159,287                 366,540                 -                               56.5%

Total Other Charges 2,019,157$         1,088,007$         1,231,150$         2,319,157$         300,000$             53.9%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Library Acquisitions 250,000                 221,096                 28,904                   250,000                 -                               88.4%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 250,000$             221,096$             28,904$               250,000$             -$                            88.4%

  Scholarships 200,000                 307,102                 307,102                 107,102                 153.6%

Total Expenditures 17,876,002$      12,696,939$      9,076,263$         21,773,202$      3,897,200$         71.0%

Southern University Law Center

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  March 31, 2021 

Page 4



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 8,158,721$           6,812,074$           1,346,647$           8,158,721$           -$                             83.5%

Statutory Dedicated 502,799                 263,629                 239,170                 502,799                 -                               52.4%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 4,851,700             4,619,305             -                               4,619,305             (232,395)               95.2%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 4,577,842             4,354,494             -                               4,354,494             (223,348)               95.1%

    Tuition - Summer 429,999                 131,418                 330,232                 461,650                 31,651                   30.6%

    Out-of-State Fees 352,829                 262,408                 81,520                   343,928                 (8,901)                    74.4%

    Other 4,735,175             2,287,535             350,000                 2,637,535             (2,097,640)           48.3%

Interagency Transfer -                               

Total Revenues 23,609,065$      18,730,863$      2,347,569$         21,078,432$      (2,530,632)$       79.3%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 10,111,886$        7,409,094$           2,702,792$           10,111,886$        -$                             73.3%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 4,740,079             3,794,690             962,191                 4,756,880             16,801                   80.1%

Total Personal Services 14,851,965$      11,203,784$      3,664,983$         14,868,766$      16,801$               75.4%

  Travel 37,000                   6,340                      30,660                   37,000                   -                               17.1%

  Operating Services 2,285,294             1,864,001             421,293                 2,285,294             -                               81.6%

  Supplies 285,500                 65,265                   220,235                 285,500                 -                               22.9%

Total Operating Expenses 2,607,794$         1,935,606$         672,188$             2,607,794$         -$                            74.2%

  Professional Services -                               22,547                   2,453                      25,000                   25,000                   

  Other Charges 4,268,732             30,413                   1,665,885             1,696,298             (2,572,434)           0.7%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 1,105,574             961,296                 144,278                 1,105,574             -                               86.9%

Total Other Charges 5,374,306$         1,014,256$         1,812,616$         2,826,872$         (2,547,434)$       18.9%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions 175,000                 -                               175,000                 175,000                 -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 175,000$             -$                            175,000$             175,000$             -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships 600,000                 447,820                 152,180                 600,000                 -                               74.6%

Total Expenditures 23,609,065$      14,601,465$      6,476,967$         21,078,432$      (2,530,633)$       61.8%

Southern University New Orleans Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  March 31, 2021 

Page 5



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 5,158,497$           3,878,259$           1,280,238$           5,158,497$           -$                             75.2%

Statutory Dedicated 162,060                 78,543                   83,517                   162,060                 -                               48.5%

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 3,877,853             3,425,635             -                               3,425,635             (452,218)               88.3%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 3,691,755             3,092,133             -                               3,092,133             (599,622)               83.8%

    Tuition - Summer 900,000                 905,451                 450,000                 1,355,451             455,451                 100.6%

    Out-of-State Fees 550,000                 274,350                 -                               274,350                 (275,650)               49.9%

    Other 989,230                 92,299                   180,000                 272,299                 (716,931)               9.3%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 15,329,395$      11,746,670$      1,993,755$         13,740,425$      (1,588,970)$       76.6%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 7,402,302$           5,890,965$           1,416,279$           7,307,244$           (95,058)$               79.6%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Related Benefits 3,666,095             2,536,025             1,050,478             3,586,503             (79,592)                 69.2%

Total Personal Services 11,068,397$      8,426,990$         2,466,757$         10,893,747$      (174,650)$           76.1%

  Travel 38,300                   1,216                      7,500                      8,716                      (29,584)                 3.2%

  Operating Services 2,166,888             1,458,057             217,620                 1,675,677             (491,211)               67.3%

  Supplies 140,200                 83,287                   19,781                   103,068                 (37,132)                 59.4%

Total Operating Expenses 2,345,388$         1,542,560$         244,901$             1,787,461$         (557,927)$           65.8%

  Professional Services 219,500                 52,419                   15,000                   67,419                   (152,081)               23.9%

  Other Charges 647,487                 6,594                      25,000                   31,594                   (615,893)               1.0%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 748,623                 368,257                 380,366                 748,623                 -                               49.2%

Total Other Charges 1,615,610$         427,270$             420,366$             847,636$             (767,974)$           26.4%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships 300,000                 173,666                 37,915                   211,581                 (88,419)                 57.9%

Total Expenditures 15,329,395$      10,570,486$      3,169,939$         13,740,425$      (1,588,970)$       69.0%
   

Southern University Shreveport Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  March 31, 2021 

 The Southern University Shreveport Campus have allocated $2.6 million in CARES Act funds to ensure the budget remains balanced and operations 
continue due to revenue shortfall.

Page 6



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 4,914,457$           3,832,906$           1,081,551$           4,914,457$           -$                             78.0%

Statutory Dedicated 1,797,470             763,714                 1,033,756             1,797,470             -                               42.5%

Federal 3,654,209             863,483                 2,790,726             3,654,209             -                               23.6%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020

    Tuition - Spring 2021

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 10,366,136$      5,460,103$         4,906,033$         10,366,136$      -$                            52.7%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 5,429,873$           3,499,013$           1,930,860$           5,429,873$           -$                             64.4%

  Other Compensation 50,000                   39,583                   10,417                   50,000                   -                               79.2%

  Related Benefits 2,579,235             1,207,424             1,371,811             2,579,235             -                               46.8%

Total Personal Services 8,059,108$         4,746,020$         3,313,088$         8,059,108$         -$                            58.9%

  Travel 121,000                 5,630                      115,370                 121,000                 -                               4.7%

  Operating Services 343,304                 253,661                 89,643                   343,304                 -                               73.9%

  Supplies 224,289                 37,361                   186,928                 224,289                 -                               16.7%

Total Operating Expenses 688,593$             296,652$             391,941$             688,593$             -$                            43.1%

  Professional Services 44,202                   4,000                      40,202                   44,202                   -                               9.0%

  Other Charges 1,423,883             260,146                 1,163,737             1,423,883             -                               18.3%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 1,468,085$         264,146$             1,203,939$         1,468,085$         -$                            18.0%

  General Acquisitions 150,350                 30,646                   119,704                 150,350                 -                               20.4%

  Library Acquisitions -                               

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 150,350$             30,646$               119,704$             150,350$             -$                            20.4%

  Scholarships

Total Expenditures 10,366,136$      5,337,463$         5,028,673$         10,366,136$      -$                            51.5%

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  March 31, 2021 

Page 7




	April 2021 BOS Meeting
	April 2021 BOS Meeting Agenda
	March BOS Meeting Minutes
	Certification of Spring Graduates
	Honorary Degree Reipient
	Recommendation of Mrs. Gayle Benson as Commencement Speaker
	Jewel Limar Pretage Public Policy, Polling and Research Center
	MOU between SUAREC and Black Farmers Hemp Research and Training Facility
	MOU between SU AQg Family and Consumer Sciences 1890 JAGSTARS Scholarship and EBRP School System
	MOU between LSU Health Shreveport School of Medicine with SUBR and SUNO
	Untitled
	Authorization for SULC to Negotiate and Agreement with ION Tuition and Mentor Works
	MOU to develop remote/virtual certificate and degree programs for students and professionals in sub-Saharan Africa
	SUBR Tenure and Promotion
	Tenure Track Appt. for Katherine McFarlane
	SUNO 100% Online Degree Program
	SUSLA New Program of Study
	Use of Prior Year Funds for Student Services
	Authorization to advance the HBCU Capital Finance Program Application
	SUSLA Endowed Professorship Policy
	Revised Policy for endowed faculty and chairs
	SULC Salary Adjustment for Instructors/Academic Counselors
	Approval of Equity Adjustments
	Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater the 60K
	Dr. David Adegboye's Sabbatical
	Untitled



